
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

Policy Overview 
Committee

Councillor E J Lampkin (Chairman)
Councillor M I Peters (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor S H Brown Councillor R Lees
Councillor P F Coleman Councillor Mrs J A Ozog
Councillor R M Currans Councillor J M Ozog
Councillor B Garden Councillor D Page
Councillor S R Jarnell Councillor A Sandhu, MBE
Councillor J Jones Councillor Mrs R F Storey
Councillor B K Kaini Councillor R J Wells
Councillor M B Kelly

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on

Tuesday 13 December 2016

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
AGENDA

Tuesday 13 December 2016

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Managing Director. 

3. Confirmation of the minutes of the Policy Overview meeting held 
on 20 September 2016 (Pages 1 - 8)

4. Urgent Items 
The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda. 

5. To consider references from other Committees (if any) 

6. Regulation 9 Notice (Pages 9 - 14)
To consider any issues arising from the Regulation 9 Notice for the 
period 7 November 2016 to 31 March 2017. 

7. Action Points Arising from the Policy Overview Committee 
Meeting held on 20 September 2016 (Pages 15 - 20)

SD (IS)

To note the list of action points arising from the Policy Overview 
Committee meeting held on 20 September 2016. 

8. Kent Public Health Service (Pages 21 - 22) SD (IS)
To update the Committee on the services being provided by the Kent 
Public Health Service. 

9. Dartford Preventative Health Projects - Annual Report 2015/16 
(Pages 23 - 34)

SD (IS)

To update the Committee on the progress on the Dartford 
Preventative Health Projects, against the priorities identified in the 
Health Inequalities Action Plan, for the financial year 2015/16. 



10. Update on the Benefit Cap, Universal Credit and Welfare 
Reforms Affecting Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction 
(Pages 35 - 40)

SD (IS)

To provide Members with an update on the Benefit Cap, Universal 
Credit and Welfare Reforms affecting Housing Benefit and Council 
Tax Reduction. 

11. Corporate Plan - Performance Indicators (Pages 41 - 52) SD (IS)
This report provides the latest set of Corporate Plan performance 
indicators for quarter 2 of 2016 – 17. 

12. Policy Overview Committee Work Plan (Pages 53 - 56) SD (IS)
This report sets out the Policy Overview Committee’s work plan. 



1

D A R T F O R D  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L

POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Policy Overview Committee held on Tuesday 20 
September 2016 at 7.00 pm

PRESENT: Councillor E J Lampkin (Chairman)
Councillor M I Peters (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor S H Brown
Councillor P F Coleman
Councillor R M Currans
Councillor B Garden
Councillor J Jones
Councillor M B Kelly
Councillor R Lees
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog
Councillor J M Ozog
Councillor D Page (Shadow Chairman)
Councillor A S Sandhu, MBE
Councillor Mrs R F Storey
Councillor R J Wells

ABSENT: Councillor S R Jarnell
Councillor Dr B K Kaini

ALSO 
PRESENT:

Tom Carter – Contract Manager, Places for 
People Management Ltd

Dave Joliffe – Area Manager, Places for People 
Management Ltd

Mrs Patricia Chapman – Dartford Borough Residents Forum

Dartford Borough Council Officers

Adrian Gowan – Policy and Corporate Support 
Manager

Stephen Jefferson – Leisure and Communities Officer
Sarah Martin – Strategic Director (Internal Services)

17. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor B K Kaini.

The Chairman also noted that Tracey Schneider, Kent County Council’s 
Project Officer for Dementia Friendly Communities, had submitted an apology 
for absence.

18. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
TUESDAY 20 SEPTEMBER 2016

2

19. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE POLICY OVERVIEW 
MEETING HELD ON 14 JUNE 2016 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Policy Overview Committee held on 14 
June 2016 be confirmed.

20. URGENT ITEMS 

There were no urgent items.

21. TO CONSIDER REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY) 

There were no references from other Committees.

22. REGULATION 9 NOTICE 

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the Regulation 9 Notice, for the period 15 August 2016 to 
31 December 2016, be noted.

23. ACTION POINTS ARISING FROM THE POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON 14 JUNE 2016 

This report asked Members to note the list of action points arising from the 
Policy Overview Committee meeting held on 14 June 2016.

In relation to the letter raising concern at the proposed reduction in funding for 
community pharmacies that had been sent to the Minister responsible for 
Community Health and Care, the Chairman advised that, in the absence of a 
response, a chasing letter had also been sent.

Reference was then made to the affordable housing related debate that had 
taken place at the last Policy Overview meeting and Members requested that 
the Head of Regeneration be asked to provide an update on the suggested 
review of affordable housing related policies by the Local Plan Members’ 
Working Group (LPMWG). During discussion the Chairman noted that the 
Chairman of the LPMWG had been made aware of the Committee’s 
suggestion.

Members also asked for a status update on the proposed report to Cabinet on 
the impact that the Housing and Planning Act may have on the Council’s 
ability to meet housing need.

RESOLVED:

1. That the list of action points arising from the Committee meetings held 
on 14 June 2016 be noted.



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
TUESDAY 20 SEPTEMBER 2016

3

2. That the Head of Regeneration be asked to provide an update on the 
suggested review of affordable housing related policies by the Local 
Plan Members’ Working Group (LPMWG).

3. That the Head of Housing be asked to provide an update on the 
proposed report to Cabinet which would describe the impact that the 
Housing and Planning Act would have on the Council’s ability to meet 
housing need.

24. DEMENTIA FRIENDLY COMMUNITIES 

The Chairman advised that Tracey Schneider, Kent County Council’s Project 
Officer for Dementia Friendly Communities, who had been due to attend the 
meeting in order to provide an update, had been feeling unwell and so was 
unable to attend. He said that, instead, she intended to provide a written 
update which would be distributed to all Committee members once received.

Members asked that their best wishes for a speedy recovery be passed to 
Mrs Schneider.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee’s best wishes for a speedy recovery be passed to Mrs 
Schneider.

25. FAIRFIELD MANAGEMENT CONTRACT 

The Chairman welcomed Tom Carter, Contract Manager, Places for People 
Management Ltd, and Dave Jolliffe, Area Manager, Places for People 
Management Ltd to the meeting, who were present to report on the 
management and operation of Fairfield Leisure Centre since its opening in 
February 2016. He then said how proud he was of the facility and welcomed 
the benefits that were being provided to the community. He also noted the 
amount of positive feedback that had been received from users of the Centre.

The Contract Manager began by describing how they had had to mobilise and 
recruit quickly following the award of the contract and that since its opening 
there had been a phenomenal demand for the facility, which had exceeded 
expectations. He welcomed the strong relationship that had been formed with 
the Council and noted how they worked together to resolve any issues that 
arise. He said that they would continue to capitalise on any opportunities that 
present themselves and work to increase the capacity of the Centre, and the 
range of programmes being offered. The Area Manager added that there had 
been a 60% usage growth over that of the old facility and that it had been 
forecast that gym membership would reach its capacity in February 2017. He 
said that this site had been one of the management company’s star 
performers and referred to the efforts being made to engage with minority 
groups. He also highlighted the variety of exercise regimes and junior 
activities that were being provided.



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
TUESDAY 20 SEPTEMBER 2016

4

Members unanimously welcomed the positive contribution to community 
health and wellbeing that was being delivered by the facility and noted the 
ongoing work that was taking place to address future challenges.

The Area Manager noted that peak time car parking capacity was also an 
issue and said that measures to address this were being discussed. 
Reference was also made to a car parking enforcement issue that had arisen 
and the Contract Manager advised that the problem had occurred when the 
car registration numbers of those using the Centre had been incorrectly 
entered into the system. He advised that once the problem had been 
identified action was quickly taken to prevent any further occurrence and said 
that the associated procedures were being changed to remove the need for 
registration numbers to be entered manually. He also noted that a new car 
parking scheme was being introduced for those users who make use of the 
Centre for more than 3 hours in a single visit. During further discussion 
Members also noted that when car parking at the Centre reaches capacity 
users who park in nearby streets can cause problems for residents.

In response to a question relating to the number of defects that had been 
reported back to the construction contractor Willmott Dixon the Contract 
Manager advised that the overall quality of the refurbishment was very good 
and that the majority of the issues reported were seen as low priority. He did 
however note that the slip resistance of the floor tiling in the wet change area 
was under review, and the way that bi-products from the pool’s sanitation 
system are managed was also being investigated.

In relation to the building itself the Policy and Corporate Support Manager 
reported that it had been short listed for a Kent Design and Development 
Award and that it was due to be inspected on the 6 October with the results 
being announced in November.

Members welcomed the moves that were being made to increase the number 
of available privacy cubicles and family changing rooms and asked about the 
parking return policy at the Centre. The Contract Manager replied that there 
was a 15 minute grace period for those that are dropping off and picking up 
and that a ‘no return within 1 hour’ policy applied to those who stay longer.

Members discussed the uptake of gymnastics classes and were advised that 
moves to encourage local groups in the area to use the facilities available at 
the Centre were ongoing and that they would continue to be promoted. The 
Area Manager noted how there was a waiting list for some of the gym classes 
but highlighted the difficulties being experienced when trying to find qualified 
coaches to take each class.

It was also noted how the recent Olympic and Paralympic coverage had 
increased the levels of interest being shown for many types of sporting 
activity. The Chairman then took the opportunity on behalf of the Committee 
to congratulate Abbie Hunnisett, the granddaughter of Councillor Hunnisett, 
on achieving 4th place in the Wheelchair Club throw F32 class event at the 
Rio Paralympics.



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
TUESDAY 20 SEPTEMBER 2016

5

Members then referred to the energy consumption figures and asked whether 
the use of renewable energy sources had been considered. The Contract 
Manager said that, having assessed energy usage at the Centre over the first 
6 months of operation, use of a small Combined Heat and Power (CHP) unit 
was being considered. The Leisure and Communities Officer confirmed that 
the refurbished building had been designed to be as energy efficient as 
possible and noted how the use of solar panels had been considered as part 
of the refurbishment but had been rejected because of the length of time that 
would have been needed to recover the cost of their installation. The Contract 
Manager added that they were continuing to look at other ways of making 
energy savings, for example by installing LED lighting in the sports hall. He 
also referred to the predicted consumption figures quoted in the report and 
said that they had been used when preparing the tender and that the higher 
than predicted electricity usage had been compensated for by the lower than 
predicted gas usage.

In response to a question relating to the number of accidents and incidents 
that had been reported the Area Manager replied that many were very minor 
and that none were serious enough to require a RIDDOR (Reporting of 
Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations) report. The 
Contract Manager also noted that how the number of recorded incidents 
included allegations of theft and witnessed misconduct by users of the Centre.

Reference was also made to a recent power outage, which had meant that 
the Centre had had to be closed. The Contract Manager advised that a loose 
connection had been identified on the incoming mains feed and that the 
Centre had been closed whilst the problem was being investigated and 
addressed and advised, that following its resolution, the various parts of the 
Centre had each been reopened and made available as soon as was safe to 
do so.

It was then noted that the figures for the number of Dartford Borough 
residents who use the Centre did not include postcode area DA5, part of 
which fell inside the Borough’s boundary. The Area Manager said that the way 
of calculating the number of DBC residents who make use of the Centre 
would be reviewed.

Members then referred to performance deductions and were advised by the 
Leisure and Communities Officer that a standard Sport England management 
contract had been used, which defined the financial penalties that would be 
applied if the management company failed to address identified problem 
areas within the specified timescales.

The Chairman thanked Mr Carter and Mr Jolliffe for taking the time to attend 
and respond to Members’ questions and invited them to return and attend the 
Committee’s March 2017 meeting in order to provide a further update. The 
Leisure and Communities Officer also advised that an Annual Report was also 
going to be prepared for consideration by Cabinet.



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
TUESDAY 20 SEPTEMBER 2016

6

RESOLVED:

1. That Tom Carter and Dave Jolliffe be thanked for attending the meeting 
and responding to Members’ questions.

2. That the Quarterly Report produced by Places For People 
Management Ltd., attached at Appendix A to the report, be noted.

3. That Mr Carter and Mr Jolliffe be invited to provide a further update to 
the Committee at their March 2017 meeting.

26. CORPORATE PLAN - PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

This report provided the latest set of Corporate Plan performance indicators 
for quarter 1 of 2016-17.

The Chairman noted this to be a regular report, which is also reported to the 
Cabinet Advisory Panel and Cabinet, and said that Members should make 
known in advance those areas they wish to consider so that appropriate 
officers, if available, may be invited to attend the meeting. He also advised 
that, in the absence of an appropriate officer, written responses would be 
provided for any issues raised. In reply to a question on the role that the 
Policy Overview Committee plays he said that the Policy Overview Committee 
had the ability to explore identified areas of concern in detail and ask that 
targeted reports be presented for consideration at future meetings if 
considered necessary.

One Member questioned the use of ‘birth’ and ‘death’ when describing the 
creation and liquidation of a business and suggested that alternative 
descriptions be used.

Members then discussed the process used when defining performance 
indicators and were advised that they are created so that senior managers 
may use them to assess whether the objectives defined in the Corporate Plan 
are being achieved. The Policy and Corporate Support Manager then 
confirmed that the Committee could ask Cabinet to consider the addition of 
further indicators if thought to be useful. Members therefore asked that 
Cabinet consider the addition of a performance indicator which tracks the 
percentage of Dartford waste that is sent to landfill.

Members noted the indicator which related to child obesity and asked that 
this, and the associated strategies being used to support the Government’s 
recent proposals, be covered by the Director of Public Health when he attends 
the Committee’s December meeting.

Members referred to the crime related indicators in the report and the 
associated policies being used when dealing with crime throughout the 
Borough but were advised by the Chairman that crime related subjects are 
dealt with by the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Committee. The 
Chairman of the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Committee, who 
was present at the meeting, confirmed that the Committee reviewed the 



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
TUESDAY 20 SEPTEMBER 2016

7

strategies being used and received regular updates on the associated crime 
statistics and progress being made. He also said that any interested Members 
were welcome to attend their meetings.

Members then requested that the Head of Housing be asked to provide 
further insight into why the ‘Percentage of non-urgent repairs completed on 
time’ continued to perform below target given that the contract with the 
Council’s current contractor, Breyer, had been extended. They also asked that 
he provide further comment on the indicator relating to the ‘Number of 
affordable homes completed’ as it was being reported as well below target.

Reference was then made to the indicator entitled ‘Percentage of customer 
service telephone calls answered within 20 seconds’ where the reported 
increase (from 3,676 to 5,836) in the number of refuse and recycling related 
calls that had been received was noted. Members requested that the Waste 
and Recycling Manager be asked to provide an insight into why there had 
been such an increase during the last quarter and what was being done to 
address the issues being raised.

Members then discussed the amount of time needed to review the 
Performance Indicator report and were advised that the report is also included 
as part of the Cabinet Advisory Panel and Cabinet agenda, which is published 
before the Policy Overview Committee agenda, thus making it available for 
review sooner than the rest of the Policy Overview Committee agenda.

RESOLVED:

1. That the contents of the Performance Indicators Monitoring Report, 
attached at Appendix A to the report, be noted.

2. That Cabinet be asked to consider the addition of a performance 
indicator that tracks the percentage of Dartford waste that is sent to 
landfill.

3. That the additional information requested in the above minute be 
obtained from the Managers concerned and distributed to all 
Committee members.

27. POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 

This report set out the Policy Overview Committee’s Work Plan.

The Chairman confirmed the following addition, which had been agreed 
during discussion of a previous agenda item:

 Fairfield Management Contract – March 2017

RESOLVED:

That the Work Plan, together with the amendment minuted above, be noted.



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
TUESDAY 20 SEPTEMBER 2016

8

The meeting closed at 8.02 pm

Councillor E J Lampkin
CHAIRMAN



7 November 2016 - 31 March 2017

1 of 5

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

LIST OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS – REGULATION 9 NOTICE

This document lists all key decisions due  to be taken  in the forthcoming 4 months in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. It also lists and contains particulars of 
any items where it is likely that the public will be excluded because consideration of the matter in public would disclose confidential of 
exempt information. The reasons for going into closed session are given in each case. An updated list will be published monthly.

All decisions are made by Cabinet collectively.

Cabinet Members:

Councillor J A Kite, MBE, Portfolio: Leader & Overall Strategy
Councillor C J Shippam, Portfolio: Deputy Leader, Strategic Service Provision & Town Centre
Councillor Mrs A D Allen, MBE, Portfolio: Community Development
Councillor P F Coleman, Portfolio: Front Line Services, Customer Champion & Housing
Councillor K M Kelly, Portfolio: Transport and Infrastructure
Councillor A R Lloyd, Portfolio: Strategic Council Finances & Major Capital Projects
Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow, Portfolio: Events, Leisure & Heritage

All of the reports contained in this list, where open to the public, will be published on the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk at least 5 
clear days before the day of the meeting or, if later, whenever they become available. All reports provide details of any background 
documents which have been relied upon to a material degree during production of the report, or relied upon when formulating 
recommendations or options for decision. Hard copies or extracts from these reports can be obtained on request by emailing 
memberservices@dartford.gov.uk.

This notice supersedes all previous notices.

http://www.dartford.gov.uk/
mailto:memberservices@dartford.gov.uk


2 of 5

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified)

Civil Penalties for Council Tax, 
Council Tax Reduction and 
Housing Benefit

This report seeks approval to impose 
civil penalties where a customer, 
without reasonable excuse, supplies 
incorrect information or fails to notify 
the Council of a change in 
circumstances relating to Council 
Tax liability, Council Tax discounts 
and exemptions, Council Tax 
Reduction and Housing Benefit. It 
also presents the Council Tax 
Support Sanction and Prosecution 
Policy for approval.

Cabinet
8 Dec 2016

Sarah Martin, Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)
Tel: 01322 343632
sarah.martin@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN

Exceptional Hardship Policy for 
Council Tax Reduction

This report presents the Exceptional 
Hardship Policy for Member 
approval, to be introduced alongside 
the changes proposed to the Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme.

Cabinet
8 Dec 2016

Public consultation via 
website carried out on 
Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme for 12 weeks 
from July to September 
2016.

Reports to Cabinet 2 
June 2016
and 27 October 2016

Sarah Martin, Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)
Tel: 01322 343632
sarah.martin@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN



3 of 5

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified)

Risk Based Verification for the 
Administration of Housing Benefit 
and Council Tax Reduction

This report advises Cabinet of the 
new approach to be taken in respect 
of verifying new claims and changes 
in circumstances for Housing Benefit 
and Council Tax Reduction and asks 
Cabinet to approve the associated 
Risk Based Verification Policy.

Cabinet
8 Dec 2016

Sarah Martin, Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)
Tel: 01322 343632
sarah.martin@dartford.gov.uk

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 7 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)

Ebbsfleet Implementation 
Framework Prepared by the 
Ebbsfleet Development 
Corporation

This report is responding to the 
request by the Ebbsfleet 
Development Corporation for the 
Council to endorse their proposed 
Implementation Framework in order 
that they can use it as a material 
consideration when determining 
planning applications.

Cabinet
8 Dec 2016

Ebbsfleet 
Implementation 
Framework

Sonia Bunn, Development 
Manager
Tel: 01322 343620
sonia.bunn@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN



4 of 5

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified)

New Build Housing Tender 
Acceptance and Project Update

The report provides details of the 
tender returns and seeks a 
recommendation to appoint a 
contractor to build the HRA new 
build social rented units at the 
Coleridge Road & 2a Temple Hill 
Square sites. The report also 
provides a general update on the 
progress made regarding the 
Council’s new build HRA housing 
programme.

Cabinet
8 Dec 2016

Peter Dosad, Head of Housing
Tel: 01322 343327
peter.dosad@dartford.gov.uk

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)

Local Scheme of Support for 
Council Tax

To approve revisions to the Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme to be 
effective from 1 April 2017.

General Assembly 
of the Council
12 Dec 2016

Public consultation via 
website.

Consultation with Major 
preceptors.

Report to Cabinet 2 
Jun 2016

Sarah Martin, Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)
Tel: 01322 343632
sarah.martin@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN

Housing Benefit Overpayment 
Write-offs

To consider writing-off Housing Benefit 
overpayments where it has not been 
possible to obtain payment, where the 
Tribunals Service has exercised its 
discretion not to recover overpaid sums 
or where recovery is not permissible 
under the relevant Housing Benefit or 
Council Tax Benefit Regulations.

Cabinet
26 Jan 2017

Sue Cressall, Revenues Manager
Tel: 01732 227041
sue.cressall@sevenoaks.gov.uk

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraphs 1 & 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)



5 of 5

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified)

Write-off of National Non-
Domestic Rates

To consider writing-off Non Domestic 
Rate debts where it has not been possible 
to obtain payment because of 
insolvency, because the ratepayer cannot 
be traced or where the debt is otherwise 
irrecoverable.

Cabinet
26 Jan 2017

Sue Cressall, Revenues Manager
Tel: 01732 227041
sue.cressall@sevenoaks.gov.uk

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)

Revenue and Capital Budgets 
2017/18

To set the levels of expenditure for 
Dartford Borough Council capital and 
revenue budgets for 2017/18, to 
approve the level of rents chargeable 
for Housing Revenue Account 
dwellings for 2017/18, to agree the 
level of Council Tax for Dartford 
Borough in its parished and 
unparished areas for 2017/18, to 
approve the Pay Policy Statement 
for 2017/18 and to determine sundry 
related matters.

General Assembly 
of the Council 
(Budget)
27 Feb 2017

Budget consultation with 
residents and 
businesses – December 
to January - mainly via 
website.

Tim Sams, Financial Services 
Manager
Tel: 01322 343148
tim.sams@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN





POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

ACTION POINTS ARISING FROM THE COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 20 SEPTEMBER 2016

1. Summary

1.1  To review the list of action points arising from the Committee meeting held on 
20 September 2016 and to consider whether any item should be referred to the 
next meeting for a more detailed discussion.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That the list of action points arising from the Committee meeting held on 20 
September 2016 be noted and that the Committee consider whether any item 
requires a report to be submitted to the next meeting, for more detailed 
discussion.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. List of Action Points

No. Item Responsible Officer
1 At their meeting on 15 December 2015, during 

consideration of the item relating to the Dartford, 
Gravesham and Swanley Clinical Commissioning 
Group, Members asked that a letter be written to the 
Secretary of State expressing concern at the funding 
issues that had been raised during the debate. The 
response received advised that the Committee’s 
concerns should be raised with NHS England as they 
are the body responsible for setting allocations to 
CCGs.

A subsequent letter was sent to the Chief Executive of 
NHS England and, as a response had not been 
received, Members at the meeting held on 14 June 
2016 asked that NHS England be chased for a reply.

A response to the letters has yet to be received.

Adrian Gowan

2 At their meeting on 14 June 2016, during 
consideration of the item on Pharmacy Services, 
Members asked that a letter be sent to Minister 
responsible for Community Health and Care 
expressing concern at the impact that pharmacy 
related funding changes may have on rural 
pharmacies and the services that they deliver.

In the absence of a reply a chasing letter was sent on 
20 September 2016.

Adrian Gowan



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

The resulting response, which is attached at Appendix 
A, was received on 20 October 2016.

3 At their meeting on 20 September 2016, during 
consideration of the action points which related to their 
14 June 2016 meeting, Members asked for an update 
on the status of the suggested review of affordable 
housing related policies by the Local Plan Members’ 
Working Group (LPMWG).

An update that had been provided by the Head of 
Regeneration was distributed to all Committee 
members.

Teresa Ryszkowska

4 At their meeting on 20 September 2016, during 
consideration of the action points which related to their 
14 June 2016 meeting, Members asked when the 
proposed report to Cabinet on the impact that the 
Housing and Planning Act 2016 may have on the 
Council’s ability to meet housing need would be made 
available.

The report is being prepared but additional detail and 
guidance, together with implementation timescales, 
still need to be made available by the Government 
before it can be finalised.

Peter Dosad

5 Tracey Schneider, Kent County Council’s Project 
Officer for Dementia Friendly Communities, had been 
due to provide an update to Members at the 
Committee’s 20 September 2016 meeting but had 
been unable to attend. She instead promised to 
provide a written update for distribution to Committee 
members.

The written update provided by Mrs Schneider was 
distributed to all Committee members.

Alan Stoneham

6 At the meeting held on 20 September 2016 the Policy 
Overview Committee, having received a presentation 
from Fairfield Leisure Centre representatives, asked 
that they be invited to return in March 2017 to provide 
a further update to the Committee.

The Work Plan has been updated accordingly.

Alan Stoneham

7 At their meeting on 20 September 2016, during 
consideration of ‘Corporate Plan – Performance 
Indicators’ report, Members asked that Cabinet 
consider the addition of a performance indicator to 

Adrian Gowan



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

track the percentage of Dartford waste that is sent to 
landfill.

This request will be considered by Cabinet on 8 
December 2016.

8 At their meeting on 20 September 2016, during 
consideration of ‘Corporate Plan – Performance 
Indicators’ report, Members asked that the strategies 
being used to address the Government’s concerns 
relating to child obesity be covered by the Director of 
Public Health when he attends the Committee’s 
December meeting.

The Director of Public Health has been advised of the 
request.

Alan Stoneham

9 At their meeting on 20 September 2016, during 
consideration of ‘Corporate Plan – Performance 
Indicators’ report, Members asked to be provided with 
further insight into why an ‘Alert’ status was being 
reported for the ‘Percentage of non-urgent repairs 
completed on time’ and  ‘Number of affordable homes 
completed’.

An associated update provided by the Head of 
Housing was distributed to all Committee members.

Peter Dosad

10 At their meeting on 20 September 2016, during 
consideration of ‘Corporate Plan – Performance 
Indicators’ report, Members asked to be provided with 
further insight into the increased number of refuse and 
recycling related calls that had been received by 
Customer Services during the last quarter and the 
action being taken to address the issues being raised.

An associated update provided by the Waste and 
Parks Manager was distributed to all Committee 
members.

Dave Thomas

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

To provide high quality services that reflect public aspirations and 
demonstrates improvement.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

Legal Implications None 
Staffing Implications None
Administrative Implications None 
Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable.

7. Appendices

Appendix A – Letter received from the Parliamentary Under Secretary of 
State for Community Health and Care

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Alan Stoneham
(01322) 343330

Member Services/ 
Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)

N/A



APPENDIX A





POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

KENT PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE

1. Summary

1.1 To update the Committee on the services being provided by the Kent Public 
Health Service.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That the information provided by the Kent Public Health Service representative 
be noted.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. At its meeting on 15 December 2015 the Committee received a briefing 
from Mr Andrew Scott-Clarke, the Director for Public Health, (Min 31) 
and, having welcomed the information that had been provided, invited 
him to return in a year’s time to provide a further update on the 
services that are being delivered and future funding plans.

3.2. At their meeting on 20 September 2016 reference was made to the 
performance indicator which related to childhood obesity and it was 
requested that the Director of Public Health to be asked to cover the 
associated strategies being used to support the Government’s recent 
proposals in this area.

3.3. Mr Andrew Scott-Clarke, Director for Public Health, will therefore be in 
attendance to provide a briefing for the Committee and respond to 
Members questions.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

Health and Wellbeing is a Corporate Plan theme.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications  None

Legal Implications  None 

Staffing Implications  None

Administrative Implications  None 

Risk Assessment  No uncertainties and/or constraints

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable.



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

7. Appendices

          None.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Alan Stoneham
(01322) 343330

Member Services

Strategic Director
(Internal Services)

N/A



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

DARTFORD PREVENTATIVE HEALTH PROJECTS - ANNUAL 
REPORT 2015/16

1. Summary

1.1 To update the Committee on the progress on the Dartford Preventative Health 
Projects, against the priorities identified in the Health Inequalities Action Plan, for 
the financial year 2015/16.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That the Committee note the outcomes and progress made on the Dartford 
Preventative Health Projects for the financial year 2015/16.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. Borough councils have a vital role to play in contributing in reducing 
health inequalities and improving the health and wellbeing of its 
residents. Functions such as planning, housing, environmental health, 
leisure and community safety all have an impact on the health and 
wellbeing of local residents.

3.2. Members will recall that the new three year Dartford Health Inequalities 
Action Plan (2015-2018) was agreed and adopted by this Committee 
on 15 December 2015.  Local priorities were developed by the Dartford 
Health Inequalities Group partners to deliver against targeted actions to 
meet local needs.  The preventative health projects delivered by this 
Council form part of this Action Plan

3.3. Dartford Borough Council has been commissioned by Public Health 
since 2008 to deliver a range of preventative health projects as part of 
a continuing annual Service Level Agreement.  This work is monitored 
quarterly through outcome monitoring submissions to Kent County 
Council.  The projects include healthy weight programmes and the 
promotion of mental wellbeing and community cohesion.  

3.4. A summary of the preventative health project outcomes achieved in 
2015/16 can be found in the Progress Report at Appendix A.  These 
outcomes relate to the priorities identified within the Dartford Health 
Inequalities Action Plan. 

3.5. The Health Inequalities Action Plan sets out six overarching objectives 
to reduce health inequalities across the Borough.  The local priorities 
identified under each objective are:

 Promote Healthy Weight for Children

 Support older people to keep them safe, independent and living 
fulfilled lives



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

 Support businesses to have healthy workplaces

 Provide the right support at the right time including financial and 
debt support 

 Develop our communities to be healthy places

 Reduce the gap in health inequalities across the social gradients

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

Health and Wellbeing is a corporate theme in the Plan.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications In 2015/16 the Council received £123,870 of 
Public Health funding to deliver preventative 
health work in the borough from Kent County 
Council.  An additional amount of £10,000 was 
received to deliver Workplace Health initiatives.   
However, in July 2015, a 7.5% in-year budget 
saving was required by Kent Public Health, 
leaving a total annual budget of £114,580 for this 
financial year.

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications The Dartford Healthy Lifestyles Coordinator post 
is funded by Kent Public Health as part of this 
work.

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment Inability to deliver against the service 
specifications set by Public Health could result in 
the loss of budget and the termination of a 
number of projects.

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

7. Appendices

Appendix A - Dartford Health Inequalities Action Plan progress report 
(2015/16)



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Dartford Health Inequalities 
Action Plan (2015-2018)

POC 
15/12/15

Hayley Brooks
(01732) 227272

Communities & 
Business Team 
(Sevenoaks District 
Council – shared 
service)

N/A





APPENDIX A

Page 1 of 8

Dartford Health Inequalities Action Plan Progress Report (2015/16)

DartfordOBJECTIVES DETAIL

Local Priority: Promote Healthy Weight for Children
Actions:  Support families to maintain a healthy weight

 Improve local healthy weight care pathways
Maximise opportunities with health visiting teams

Progress: Don’t Sit, Get Fit! 

 Don’t Sit, Get Fit! Delivered in 5 schools targeted by the National Child Measurement Programme, 
supported by projects/events for NCMP, Kent Public Health, Dartford Libraries and The British 
Heart Foundation

 Dynamo club – Family Weight Management programme at Fairfield Leisure Centre
 Summer Sizzler programme, free physical activity sports interactive programme engaging 

families ran across the Borough.

Objective 1:
Give every child 
the best start in 
life

Outcomes: Weight Management Services for Families (Don’t Sit Get Fit)

 5 Don’t Sit Get Fit were run across during 2015/16 In targeted schools
 3 Dynamo clubs ran during 2015/16 to coincide with the school term times
 19 families took part 
 22 children completed the program (who were above the 91st centile) 1
 61 families engaged (The Annual target for Dartford was 50)
 16 Children reduced or maintained their BMI Z-score (Children above 91st centile) (72.7%

Community Chef 
 19 Families were given cookery sessions
 The Community Chef linked up with Sure Start to offer cookery session. 

1 A BMI above the 91st centile suggests overweight



APPENDIX A

Page 2 of 8

OBJECTIVES DETAIL Dartford

 
Summer Sizzler 
 Approximately 100 children attended.  Dartford Early Help workers linked in to the Summer 

Sizzlers and engaged with children under 5 years and their families.

Issues: The Kent Public Health funding for the Community Chef has now finished.  This worker had previously 
supported local authorities, schools and health promotion activities.

Local Priority: Support older people to keep them safe & living fulfilled independent lives
Action:  Develop Dementia Friendly Communities, provide services and activities to support sufferers and 

carers
 Support individuals to improve self-management of long term conditions
 Deliver effective local services for falls prevention
 Support the Dartford’s Elder’s Forum
 Improve provision of adaptations and equipment in the home to prevent accidents and improve the 

quality of life.
 Support individuals with learning disabilities to access services

Support Shopsafe ID Scheme

Objective 2: 
Enable all 
children, young 
people and adults 
to maximise their 
capabilities and 
have control over 
their lives

Progress: Dementia Friendly Communities
 Ongoing support for local Dementia awareness support groups and links with organisations who 

require Training such as the leisure Centre  

Assertiveness Courses
 Being Assertive Courses and Health Walks supported by DBC enabling  individuals to improve self-

management of long term conditions

Postural Stability
 2 Free Community based Postural Stability classes during the Week at different locations in the 

Borough.

Elders Forum
 Elders Forum has grown to become one of the most successful events of its kind in the South East.



APPENDIX A

Page 3 of 8

OBJECTIVES DETAIL Dartford

Outcomes: Dementia awareness 
 Training set up for DBC frontline staff and local groups. Attend, signpost and promote the Dementia 

meetings and Cafes 
.
Being Assertive  Course
 11 people were recruited.  44 attendances recorded 100% of individuals completed the course 

reported an improvement in assertiveness.

Health Walks
 5  Health Walks operating at 5 different locations n the Borough
 ran by local volunteers 
 ran over 48 weeks of the year
 1377 attendances

Of those surveyed (18 returned evaluation forms):
 33% have improved their health
 33% have improved their fitness
 33% have improved their social connectivity
 33% have improved their mental wellbeing
 100% people have had a positive outcome not listed above, for example reductions in blood 

pressure and help with joint pains.

Free Community based Postural Stability class 
 684 attendances and 76 sessions were run.
 
Of those surveyed (30 returned evaluations)
 Over 40% people have improved their health, fitness and social connectivity
 40% people have improved their levels of physical activity
 30% people have improved their mental wellbeing



APPENDIX A

Page 4 of 8

OBJECTIVES DETAIL Dartford

Six Ways To Wellbeing
 February 2016 and Easter 2016 events at Dartford Library promoting Six Ways of Wellbeing.
 50 engagers received information about the Six Ways to Wellbeing.

Elders Forum 
 200 active senior members of the Community.  Examples of the topics presented are:
 Kent Fire Authority – safety in the home
 NHS – integration of services consultation
 Solar heating – benefits/cost savings    
 KCC – Adult social care
 Natwest Bank – banking fraud prevention

Switch and Save 
 Energy Switch initiative for cost savings
 800 people have been seen, saving a total of £108,000, the average saving has been £135.

Support Shopsafe ID Scheme
 318 people have signed up to this scheme, and over 50 businesses.

Troubled Families
 44% of families engaged in the project improved their emotional wellbeing.

Issues: Due to reduced funding a minimal charge £1.50 per week has been made to clients attending the Falls 
Prevention Classes 

Local Priority: Support businesses to have healthy workplaces
Action:  Support Kent Healthy Businesses Award to increase the number of local businesses  taking part

 Reduce the smoking prevalence among routine and manual workers
 Ensure businesses and workplaces are safe 
 Collaborative work between DBC and  Fairfield Leisure Centre to promote healthy lifestyles 

Objective 3: 
Create fair 
employment & 
good work for all

Progress: Kent Healthy Business Award



APPENDIX A

Page 5 of 8

OBJECTIVES DETAIL Dartford

 7 Businesses are currently working with DBC, with 5 signing a declaration of intent to achieve the 
Healthy Business Award with 1 (Wellbeing Link) currently being assessed.

Outcomes: Kent Healthy Business Award

 3 (one with two sites) of those who have shown interest in the award, could not immediately start 
the award due to current workload, but hope to start looking at the award in the near future.  A quit 
club with a small group of employees at BDP on Crossways was set up with positive outcomes

Issues: Difficulties in engaging businesses in Dartford. In Dartford hundreds of businesses have been 
contacted and either had no response or been told that they do not have the staffing capacity to 
commit to putting a portfolio together.

Local Priority: Provide the right support at the right time including financial & debt support 
Action:  Improve outcomes for families identified through the troubled families programme

 Promote sources of information and where people can get help with benefits and financial support
 Provide information for older people who may struggle to heat their home
 Provide financial advice and training on how to best manage debts and household budgets as part 

of the HERO project

Progress: Dartford HERO Project

Between 14 Nov 2015 and 24 March 2016.
 41 Customers referred since the 14th of November 2015 to 24th of March 2016
 29 Customers engaged with Service (71%)
   25 Currently Live with HERO. (61%)

Objective 4: 
Ensure healthy 
standards of living 
for all

Outcomes: Dartford HERO Project

 Direct Income to rents account £4506.04 
 10 negotiated Arrears offers (34%), 12 Housing benefit claims including back dates. (41.%)



APPENDIX A

Page 6 of 8

OBJECTIVES DETAIL Dartford

 3 cases cleared rent arrears since engaging with HERO in excess of £3000 rent arrears.

Issues:

Local Priority: Develop our communities to be healthy places 

Action:  Provide and promote opportunities for sport, leisure and active recreation
 Improve and minimise the effects of poor air quality on vulnerable groups 
 Develop parks, green spaces, and public rights of way 
 Reduce the impact of poor housing and noise pollution on health
 Ensure development in the borough provides a good quality of life and creates the conditions for 

communities to flourish.
 Effective partnership Working in with GP’s, Hospitals,, KCHFT, schools, Health Trainers, MIND, 

Charities 
Progress: Sport and Leisure

 35,000 people attended the Dartford Festival.
 25 Dartford clubs registered with Kent Sport Connect.
 11 new Dartford coaches registered on the Coaches Register.
 Project 500, a project encouraging more females into coaching, with 3 from Dartford registering in 

2015/16.
 13 schools from Dartford attended a Kent wide Sport conference.
 Kent School Games & Sainsbury’s School Games, 168 pupils from four schools took part, in the 

Sainsbury’s School Games, and 164 in the Kent School Games.

Objective 5: 
Create & develop 
healthy 
sustainable places 
& communities

Outcomes: Sport and Leisure
 Sporting provision is a priority for Dartford’s community grant scheme Holiday activity programme 
 Summer Sizzler’s Promotion of free or low cost physical activity opportunities in the borough 

through Get Active 
 For a Healthier Happier Dartford initiative
 Co-ordination and expansion of GP exercise referral scheme in the borough
 Implementation of Dartford Core Strategy  - part of the Local Development Framework
 Improve facilities and activities in parks and open spaces
 Supporting communities to enhance, look after, be actively involved in and access their local green 



APPENDIX A

Page 7 of 8

OBJECTIVES DETAIL Dartford

spaces e.g. environmental projects or ‘Friends of’ groups
 Deliver a programme of activities and events to increase accessibility e.g. educational and health 

walks across the borough, Naturally Active project
  Promotion of annual Dartford Festival to encourage community involvement

Health Walks
 5 walks in the Borough 1377 attendances
 Health Matters programme Fairfield Leisure Centre-Supporting  individual to improve self-

management of long term conditions
 Diabetes Event October working collaboratively with key partners 

Issues:

Local Priority: Reduce the gap in health inequalities across social gradients 
Action:  Focus on improving the health of those at the bottom of the social gradient fastest

 Reduce smoking prevalence particularly in areas or among groups of high prevalence
 Deliver services and promote the benefits of a healthy diet and active lifestyle to reduce obesity 

and related co-morbidities
 Promote sensible drinking and ensure treatment services are accessible for all

Progress: Adult Weight Management

 15 Adult healthy weight programmes were run in deprived locations in the Dartford Area.
 A total of 273 people were recruited.  Of these 273, 195 had a BMI of 28 or more.  
 Good links are maintained with GP’s and Key partners to encourage referrals. 
  Health Trainer drop in sessions are run  3 days a week at the Healthy Living Centre

Objective 6: 
Strengthen the 
role and impact of 
ill health 
prevention 

Outcomes: Adult Weight Management

 Of those 164 who engaged, 63 lost at least 3% (32.3%). 
 77% of responders increased their weekly exercise.
 64.6% of responders have increased their fruit and vegetable intake.



APPENDIX A

Page 8 of 8

OBJECTIVES DETAIL Dartford

 52.3% of responders have reduced their unhealthy food intake.
 44.4% of responders reduced their alcohol consumption.
 69% of responders improved their mental health

Stop Smoking
 3 Smokers were identified and offered support at HLC 

GET Active
 Low cost exercise classes in deprived areas in Dartford to promote and encourage participation in 

physical activity 
 246 exercise sessions 1614 attendances 
 40 people have improved their health
 25 people have improved their fitness
 22 people feel more socially connected
 38 people have maintained or improved their weight
 22 people have improved their physical activity levels
 3 people have improved their diet
 8 people have improved their mental wellbeing.

Issues:



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

UPDATE ON THE BENEFIT CAP, UNIVERSAL CREDIT AND 
WELFARE REFORMS AFFECTING HOUSING BENEFIT AND 
COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION

1. Summary

1.1  To provide Members with an update on the Benefit Cap, Universal Credit and 
Welfare Reforms affecting Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That the information contained in the report be noted.

3. Background and Discussion

Benefit Cap

3.1. The Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 is introducing significant 
changes to the welfare system with the aim of simplifying it and 
encouraging more people back into work. 

3.2. The next phase of the Government’s Welfare Reforms includes the 
expansion of the Benefit Cap, which introduced a national limit on the 
amount of benefits a single person or family can receive.

Status Prior to 7 November From 7 November
Couple/single 
parent

£26,000 per year/£500 
per week

£20,000 per 
year/£384.62 per week

Single £18,200 per year/£350 
per week

£13,400 per 
year/£257.69 per week

3.3. People of working age, between 16 and 64, who receive more than 
£384.62 as a family, or £257.69 as a single person a week in benefit, 
will have certain benefits, including Housing Benefit (HB), reduced to 
keep their overall benefit below the new limits set by the Government. 

3.4. The cap applies to the total amount of people in a household, including 
partners and any children, who get income from certain benefits.

3.5. People who are eligible for Working Tax Credit or Pension Credit will 
not be affected by the cap, or if they or their partner get Universal 
Credit and their household income is more than £430 a month after tax 
and National Insurance. 

Impact Assessment

3.6. The DWP states that nationally, around 88,000 households will be 
affected by the reduced Benefit Cap, resulting in an average loss per 
household of £60 per week. 



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

3.7. From 7 November, this has resulted in a further reduction in household 
income for the 14 families who were originally subject to the £26,000 
cap (the cap is now £20,000). 

3.8. It is estimated that a further 221 households will be capped for the first 
time from 14 November (this date is in line with the DWP’s national roll-
out programme). This is likely to result in 213 households being capped 
at £20,000 and 8 being capped at £13,400.

Notification and Support

3.9. In September, the DWP wrote to every household likely to be affected 
by the reduced cap rates

3.10. In the last week of October, the Partnership sent letters to the 14 
households who were subject to the £26,000 cap inviting them to claim 
a Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP) in preparation for the further 
reduction in income (a scheme which, at the Council’s discretion, can 
provide additional financial support towards housing costs).

3.11. Households that are being capped for the first time have also been 
written to. They have been invited to claim a DHP, as well as being 
informed about the help and support the HERO (Housing, Energy, 
Retraining and Options) service can give.

3.12. In addition, the Council’s Housing Team, HERO officers and 
Registered Social Landlords have all been given details of households 
affected by the cap so that they can give direct advice and support. 

Universal Credit – National Position

3.13. In 2014, the intention was that the full roll-out of Universal Credit (UC) 
would be completed by mid-2018 (8,000,000 cases). The current 
spend on the project to date has been £1.146billion and at the end of 
September, there were 338,519 people claiming UC (4%), with the 
number of ‘starts’ in the month being 27,775.

3.14. Based on the number of UC starts in September, full roll-out would take 
until 2292 to complete.

3.15. In one of his first announcements as the new Secretary of State, 
Damian Green set out a further 12-month delay in the roll-out of UC. 
Consequently, the managed migration of existing legacy benefit claims, 
including housing benefit, will be further delayed from the previously 
announced date of July 2018 and will not now start until July 2019 - the 
reason given was ‘to build in some contingency’. This means that the 
full migration of exiting working-age housing benefit cases is not now 
scheduled to be completed until March 2022 (previously March 2021).



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

3.16. Reference was also made to the replacement of housing benefit for 
pensioners in which he said ‘in order to give greater certainty to local 
authorities’, this will not even begin to happen until the roll-out of UC to 
all working-age housing benefit cases has been competed. 

3.17. Under this latest timetable, the roll out to working-age housing benefit 
cases will not be completed until at least March 2022, and the transfer 
of such claims to Pension Credit will inevitably take several years 
beyond that. Consequently, it is important to continue to plan and 
resource housing benefit for pensioners for the foreseeable future.

3.18. In addition, Mr. Green also announced that the government is 
'reshaping' the phased expansion of UC and he set out a new schedule 
for the roll-out of the full digital claims service.

3.19. For new UC claims, the previous schedule to start rolling out the digital 
service to 50 job centre plus offices a month from February 2017 has 
been revised and delayed again. It will now take place between July 
2017 and September 2018 as follows:

 30 jobcentres a month from July 2017
 following a break over the summer, 55 jobcentres a month 

between October and December 2017
 65 jobcentres a month from February 2018
 the final 57 jobcentres in September 2018

3.20. This schedule may still be over ambitious because it is evident from 
various sources that the digital service is plagued with problems.

Universal Credit – Local Position

3.21. The Council became a live UC site on 25 January 2016. The following 
gives a summary of activity to date:

 63 UC cases have applied for Council Tax Reduction
 20 UC cases involving Housing Benefit have been cancelled
 3 UC cases have been referred by the DWP to HERO for help 

with personal budgeting support referrals from the DWP
 No cases have been referred for help with online access 

Welfare Reforms affecting Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction

3.22. A reduction in the maximum period for backdating Housing Benefit 
(HB) claims from 6 months to 1 month - this took effect from 1 April 
2016 and, subject to GAC approval, it will also apply to the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme (CTRS) from 1 April 2017.



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

3.23. Removal of the Family Premium (£17.45 per week) from the applicable 
amount – a standard national figure used in the calculation of HB which 
the Government believes reflects the basic living needs of an applicant 
and their family.

This took effect from 1 May 2016 (new HB claims only) and, subject to 
GAC approval, it will also apply in the calculation of CTRS from 1 April 
2017.

3.24. The period for which a person can be temporarily absent from Great 
Britain and still receive HB has been reduced from 13 weeks to 4 
weeks.

This took effect from 28 July 2016 and, subject to GAC approval, it will 
also apply to the CTRS from 1 April 2017.

3.25. New claimants of Employment and Support Allowance (ESA) who are 
placed in the Work Related Activity Group will no longer receive the 
Work Related Activity Component in either their ESA or within the 
calculation of Housing Benefit because it is being abolished.

This still requires legislation to be passed but it is assumed that this will 
be effective from 1 April 2017. Likewise, subject to GAC approval, the 
same would also apply to the CTRS from this date.

3.26. The Government will be limiting dependent additions, which are 
components of the applicable amount, to a maximum of two children in 
the calculation of Housing Benefit. There will be exceptions but 
primarily, this will only affect households who have a third or 
subsequent child on or after 1 April 2017.

This also still requires legislation to be passed but it is assumed that 
this will be effective from 1 April 2017. Likewise, subject to GAC 
approval, the same would also apply to the CTRS from this date

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

Not applicable.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications See risk assessment

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None

Administrative 
Implications

Minimal



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

Risk Assessment Affected residents will experience a reduction in 
their household income. With less disposable 
income, this may result in some residents finding 
it more difficult to pay their rent and their council 
tax. The following will help mitigate this impact:

 The Discretionary Housing Payment 
Scheme (Housing Benefit)

 The introduction of an Exceptional 
Hardship Scheme (Council Tax Reduction

 Using the HERO service to support 
claimants directly affected by the Benefit 
Cap

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

None Nick Scott
Head of Revenues & 
Benefits
(01732) 227397

Revenues and 
Benefits 

Internal Services

N/A





CABINET
8 DECEMBER 2016

POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

CORPORATE PLAN – PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

1. Summary

1.1 This report provides the latest set of Corporate Plan performance indicators 
for quarter 2 of 2016-17.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That Members note the contents of the Performance Indicators Monitoring 
Report attached at Appendix A.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. Dartford Borough Council’s Corporate Plan 2014–17 includes a set of 
performance indicators relating to the Council’s own service 
performance and the wider performance of the Borough.

3.2. This latest Performance Indicators Monitoring Report, attached at 
Appendix A, includes baseline data for 2014-15 and 2015-16, and data 
for the first two quarters of 2016-17.

3.3. The indicators either present data only or they have targets assigned to 
them. Most indicators report quarterly but some indicators may report 
annually, and these have been identified in the report.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

4.1 This report presents the data on the Corporate Plan Performance 
Indicators.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications None

Staffing Implications None

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable



CABINET
8 DECEMBER 2016

POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

7. Appendices

Appendix A – Performance Indicators Monitoring Report 

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Corporate Plan 2014-2017 Sarah Williamson
(01322) 343470

Policy and 
Corporate Support

Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)

N/A



1

APPENDIX A
DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL – CORPORATE PLAN 2014-17

Performance Indicators Monitoring Report – Q2 2016-17

Performance Indicator Status
 Data Only

 OK

 Warning

 Alert

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION
COUNCIL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Community Infrastructure Levy Income                                                                                                                                                                                               Source: DBC Planning/PPI29
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

              2014-15    
              Result            £55,575

              2015-16
              Result          £614,339

              Q1 Result         £243,668
              Q2 Result         £832,412

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) has been applied to eligible development since April 2014. 
During quarter 2 of 2016-17, payments have been made by development at three sites.  A final 
instalment payment is due in 2017 at one of the sites. Payment of CIL is not required until the liable 
development commences and therefore it is not unusual for it to take some time for the level of CIL 
revenue to increase. Now time has elapsed since introduction, CIL payment levels have risen this year. 
In total just under £1.08m has been received by the Council in the first two quarters far exceeding 
previous annual CIL income. 15% of the revenue generated from CIL liable developments in their area, 
will be passed to town/parish councils and local neighbourhoods and a further proportion of the total 
CIL revenue will be used for administrative costs.

Projected planning fee income for the year                                                                                                                           Source: DBC Planning/PPI31
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

              2014-15
              Projection    £546,840
              Actual          £553,058

              2015-16
              Projection    £446,840
              Actual          £626,790

               Q1 Projection   £111,711 
               Q1 Actual         £148,301
               Q2 Projection   £223,422
               Q2 Actual         £299,396

July saw fee income of some £80K, the highest monthly total received so far this year, due to monies 
from major category applications received.  Although dropping in August, as expected due to the 
holiday period, this rose significantly in September.  The actual fee income at the end of quarter 2 is 
running at some £75K higher than the projected target.    



2

OVERALL BOROUGH INDICATORS
Overall business birth/death rate                                                                                                                                Source: ONS Business Demography/BI1

2012 and 2013 2014
              2012  
              Births                    480
              Deaths                  385                 
                     
              2013  
              Births                    605
              Deaths                  350

              Births                        630
              Deaths                      385

The Business Demography data set refers to new business registrations as business births. 
Businesses that have ceased to trade (identified through de-registration of the administrative units, that 
is, VAT and PAYE) are referred to as business deaths.

There continues to be more business birth rates than business death rates in the Borough. Business 
birth rates in 2014 are up by 4.13% from 2013. Business death rates in 2014 are also up by 10% from 
2013. In Kent overall (KCC area), the business birth rate in 2014 was 7,680 compared to 7,745 in 
2013. The overall business death rate in Kent in 2014 was 5,680 compared to 5,850 in 2013. (Annual 
Indicator – next data due  Nov 2016)  

District wide unemployment rate                                                                                                                                      Source: NOMIS Claimant Count/BI2
Jan 2014 Sep 2016

                 Result              2.1%                   Result                1.2%       
                   

There were 795 unemployed people in the Borough in September 2016, which represents an 
unemployment rate of 1.2%. The unemployment rate has stayed the same since last month. In Kent 
overall (KCC area), the unemployment rate in September 2016 was 1.6%. 

Town centre average footfall                                                                                                                                   Source: DBC Town Centre Management/BI3
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                 2014-15
                 Result         117,365

                 2015-16
                 Result         107,638

                     Q1 Result    133,071
                     Q2 Result    137,875                    

Average town centre footfall for the period 1 July to 30 September is up 6.6% on the same period in the 
previous year. Thursday and Saturday remain the busiest days which are both market days.

Number of new homes built                                                                                                                                                        Source: DBC Planning/BI4
2013-14 and 2014-15 2015-16

                  2013-14
                  Result                602
                 
                 2014-15

                  Result                565

                     Result                 971           
2015-16 finally saw the long-anticipated increase in housing completions, following the very significant 
slow-down during the recession and the extended recovery period.  There have been a number of large 
planning consents in place for several years and higher levels of housing delivery have been expected 
but not materialised until now, on the back of these planning consents.

The highest number of completions during the year have been at the Northern Gateway (413 homes), 
comprising mainly sites on the former GSK site land as well as the former Arjo Wiggins site off 
Burnham Road.  There has also been significant delivery at The Bridge (234 homes).  80 homes were 
completed at Eastern Quarry and 44 homes at St Clements Valley.

The oldest planning consents, those at Eastern Quarry and Ebbsfleet which now fall within the 
Ebbsfleet Development Corporation (EDC) area, have continued to be slow in coming forward.  The 
EDC have projected a step change in delivery from this coming year.

The outlook for next year’s housing delivery looks positive, with 500 homes currently under 
construction and an expected uplift in EDC delivery, particularly at Eastern Quarry and on the former 
Northfleet West Sub-station site (Ebbsfleet Green).  The very large planning pipeline, as well as 
government funding through the EDC to help unlock the Ebbsfleet Valley sites, bodes well for housing 
delivery in future years, with completions expected to exceed the current year’s performance.



3

  2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-112011-12 2012-132013-14 2014-15 2015-16
Housing delivery required to 
achieve Core Strategy ‘up to 
17,3000’ homes (planning 
phasing)

460 460 460 460 460 1,020 1,020 1,020 1,020 1,020

Annual average local housing 
need requirement, based on 
national projection

585 585 585 585 585 585 585 585 585 585

Actual delivery 659 603 610 151 362 322 422 602 565 971
(Annual Indicator – next data due 2017) 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING
COUNCIL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Usage of Borough Council sports facilities                                                                                                        Source: DBC Policy & Corporate Support/PCS1
2015-16 2016-17

                

Park Run (average users)
Q2                                 131
Q3                                 130
Q4                                 133
Princes Park Mini Pitches (users)
Q1                                   62
Q2                                   68
Q3                                   67
Q4                                   62
Fairfield Leisure Centre
Total centre visit, overall 
categories, for February to 
March 2016              49,669

    

              
 

Park Run (average users)
Q1                                    139
Q2                                    143
Junior Park Run (average users)
Q1                                      52
Q2                                      42
Princes Park Mini Pitches (users)
Q1                                      45 
Q2                                      45
Fairfield Leisure Centre
Total centre visit, overall 
categories:
Q1                             110,848
Q2                             111,335

Parkrun and Junior Parkrun continue with steady figures. The Princes Park mini pitches actual income 
is down due to the closed season, however, user numbers have stayed the same since last quarter, 
there were just less bookings per user over the summer. There has been a potential new Sunday 
league enquiry for existing availability. There has been an increase in Fairfield Leisure Centre visits of 
over 60% compared to pre-refurbishment numbers.

Number of local groups supported through Community Grant and other grant schemes                            Source: DBC Policy & Corporate Support/PCS2
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                2014-15
                Result                    44

                2015-16
                Result                    30

        
          

Salute to Youth                   
Q1                                        0
Q2                                        1
Community Grant Scheme
Q1                                        0
Q2                                        0
DBC Community Fund 
Q1                                        2
Q2                                        2    

1 grant was awarded under the Salute to Youth scheme in quarter 2. The annual Community Grant 
scheme is currently running in October and will be reported on in quarter 3. 2 grants were awarded 
under the DBC Community Fund in quarter 2.



4

Percentage attendance at the Orchard Theatre (% of total seats available which are used)                         Source: DBC Policy & Corporate Support/PCS3
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15          
                  Result           58.33%
                  2015-16
                  Result           64.42%

                    Q1 Result         56% 
                    Q2 Result    54.67%

The average percentage attendance at the Orchard Theatre for quarter 2 of 2016-17 was 54.67%. This 
is below the average attendance seen in the same quarter last year (66.67%). This lower attendance 
was due to the Orchard Theatre being closed for essential maintenance works for two weeks during 
August.

OVERALL BOROUGH INDICATORS
Overall life expectancy gap in the Borough                                                                                                     Source:  Public Health England, Health Profiles/BI5

2010-12 and 2011-13 2012-14
                  2010-12
                  Male                  7.7

                    Female             6.2                  
                   2011-13
                   Male                 7.6
                  Female             8.3

                    Males                  8.0
                   Females              5.9  

Latest available figures for 2012-14 show that life expectancy is 8.0 years lower for men and 5.9 years 
lower for women in the most deprived areas of Dartford than in the least deprived areas. In Kent overall 
(KCC area) life expectancy is 7.4 years lower for men and 4.4 years lower for women in the most 
deprived areas of Kent than in the least deprived areas. (Annual Indicator – next data due 2017) 

Percentage of obese children in year six                                                                                                        Source: Public Health England, Health Profiles /BI6
2012-13 to 2014-15 2014-15

                    2012-13      
                    Result          22.8%                     
                    2013-14
                    Result          23.2%

                   Result              19.6%        Latest available figures for 2014-15 show that 19.6% of children in year six (10-11 year olds) were 
classified as obese in the Borough. This is an improvement from the previous year where 23.2% of 
children in year six were classified as obese. In Kent overall (KCC area), the figure is 18.1%. (Annual 
Indicator  - next data due Nov 16)  

Percentage of adults achieving at least 150 minutes of physical exercise per week                                               Source: Public Health England, Health Profiles /BI7
2012 to 2014 2015

                    2012 
                    Result        52.9%                   
                    2013 
                    Result        56.6%
                    2014
                    Result        55.8%

                      Result           57.8%
Latest available figures for 2015 show that 57.8% of adults were physically active in the Borough. This 
is just below the average for Kent (59%) and just above the average for England (57%). (Annual Indicator 
– next data due 2017)  

SAFER COMMUNITIES
COUNCIL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Total number of arrests instigated by CCTV                                                                                            Source: DBC Enforcement & Regulatory Control/EARPI14
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                   2014-15    
Result                45

                   2015-16
                   Result                76

                    Q1 Result            11
                    Q2 Result            22      

CCTV staffing cover is being provided during key times when the service may be able to witness 
offences or identify offenders. This approach benefits Dartford, with officer proactivity resulting in a 
higher number of arrests than previous years. In previous years, there were 19 arrests in quarter 2 of 
2015-16 and 12 arrests in quarter 2 of 2014-15.



5

Total number of arrests supported by CCTV                                                                                           Source: DBC Enforcement & Regulatory Control/EARPI15
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                   2014-15   
Result              148

                   2015-16
                   Result               51

                    Q1 Result           10               
                    Q2 Result           15

This figure records how many situations initiated by Police or store detectives are supported by CCTV, 
therefore depends on proactivity of town centre partners; a CCTV operator being on-duty to assist in 
following suspects; and a police resource being able to effect an arrest.  In previous years, there were 
11 arrests in quarter 2 of 2015-16 and 44 arrests in quarter 2 of 2014-15.

Percentage of high risk (categories A & B) food hygiene inspections due and completed                                Source: DBC Environmental Health/EHPI5 
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target           100%
                  Result           100%
                  2015-16
                  Target            100%
                  Result            100%

                    Target                100%
                    Q1 Result       100%
                    Q2 Result       100%

All high risk inspections that were due were completed in quarter 2. Performance in previous years has 
been consistently met with 100% of inspections due and completed.

OVERALL BOROUGH INDICATORS
Total number of crimes committed in the Borough                                                                                            Source: Enforcement & Regulatory Control/BI8

Oct 2013 to Sep 2014 and 
2015-16

2016-17

Oct 2013 to Sep 2014
Result           8,318

               2015-16
                   Result           8,087                           

                    Q1 Result       2,414
                    Q2 Result       2,418          

In the same quarter last year there were 2,010 total crimes committed in the Borough. The 400 crime 
rise in Dartford is consistent with increases seen across Kent, and other districts have seen a rise of 
between 130 and 700 crimes compared to quarter 2 of last year; consistent with their size and historic 
crime rate. Kent Police advice that:
From a policing perspective crime is monitored on a daily basis in order to identify any arising issues 
and put in place plans to tackle such. Total crime levels have remained within expected limits since the 
start of the financial year. Currently crime levels in Dartford have risen when compared with same period 
last year.  When compared with quarter 2 of 2016-17 they are stable. This should be viewed against a 
context whereby Dartford was one of the best performing districts in the force during the year 2015-16.  
In particular during quarter 2 (2015-16) the crime levels were amongst the lowest reported for over 18 
months.  

Number of criminal damage offences in the Borough                                                                                        Source: Enforcement & Regulatory Control/BI9
Oct 2013 to Sep 2014 and 

2015-16
2016-17

Oct 2013 to Sep 2014   
Result         1,197

                     2015-16
                     Result         1,237

                    Q1 Result          403           
                    Q2 Result          391
                     

There has not been anything which could be considered as an ongoing trend in one particular area and 
therefore opportunities to tackle this crime have been limited. In previous years, there were 343 
criminal damage offences in quarter 2 of 2015-16 and 301 in quarter 2 of 2014-15.

Number of recorded anti-social behaviour incidents in the Borough                                                              Source: Enforcement & Regulatory Control/BI10
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                    2014-15
                    Result          2,735
                    2015-16                         
                    Result          2,747

                    Q1 Result          709           
                    Q2 Result          946

There has not been anything which could be considered as an ongoing trend in one particular area and 
therefore opportunities to tackle this crime have been limited. In previous years, there were 841 ASB 
incidents in quarter 2 of 2015-16 and 849 in quarter 2 of 2014-15. Multi-agency response, including 
additional police capacity, to tackle issues of ASB in the town centre is on-going and having a positive 
impact.



6

ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY
COUNCIL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Percentage of household waste recycled or composted                                                                                              Source: DBC Waste & Parks/WRPI3
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target             30%
                  Result        27.46%
                  2015-16
                  Target             30%
                  Result        25.38%

              Target                     30%
              Q1 Result    26.5% 
              Q2 Result    26.1% (est)

Overall performance is down because of reduced levels of recycling, increased quantities of general 
waste and increased rejections at the Materials Recycling Facility.

Number of households participating in the green bin service                                                                                      Source: DBC Waste & Parks/WRPI4
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target           4,500
                  Result           5,366
                  2015-16
                  Target            6,000  
                  Result            5,817

             Target (by year end) 6,000  
             Q1 Result              5,989
             Q2 Result              6,206
             

The number of customers has now increased to a little over 6,000 but the aim is to get this to 7 to 8,000 
over time.

Number of fly tipping incidents                                                                                                                                        Source: DBC Waste & Parks/WRPI7
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target               120 
                  Result               104
                  2015-16
                  Target                120
                  Result                 89

               Target                           30              
               Q1 Result                 59
               Q2 Result                 59

Fly tipping / illegal dumping now seems to have levelled off, but at a much higher rate than previously 
experienced.

Number of graffiti incidents                                                                                                                                              Source: DBC Waste & Parks/WRPI8
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target              120 
                  Result                35
                  2015-16
                  Target              120
                  Result                45        

               Target                           30                
               Q1 Result                 10
               Q2 Result                  9

The amount of graffiti in the Borough remains low.

Number of households taking part in energy efficiency initiatives in the Borough                                                 Source: DBC Housing Services/HPI43
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                   2014-15
                   Result              841
                   2015-16
                   Result              653

               Q1 Result                 64   
               Q2 Result                 21

Warm Homes figures should improve in the next 6 months as there has been a letter drop about cavity 
wall and loft insulation across the Borough. The data included in this performance indicator is gathered 
from a number of different sources relating to different projects and programmes and is proving difficult 
to collect. The end of year position is expected to be around that of 2015-16 but this will not be 
confirmed until end of year data is provided and analysed. This figure is reported by quarter.



7

HOUSING AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES
COUNCIL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Percentage of emergency repairs completed on time                                                                                                   Source: DBC Housing Services/HPI5
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target           100%
                  Result           100%
                  2015-16
                  Target           100%
                  Result         99.88%

                    Target             100%
                    Q1 Result        100%
                    Q2 Result    99.21%

This performance indicator is on target. The cumulative total rate for 2016-17 is 99.56%.
Performance achieved target for the percentage of emergency repairs completed on time for 2015-16.

Percentage of urgent repairs completed on time                                                                                                          Source: DBC Housing Services/HPI6        
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target            98%
                  Result        95.49%
                  2015-16
                  Target             98%
                  Result        95.42%

                    Target               98%
                    Q1 Result     94.95%
                    Q2 Result     93.59%         

This performance indicator is slightly below target for quarter 2. The cumulative total rate for 2016-17 is 
94.27%. October’s performance has improved. However this is to be expected and is resultant on the 
concentration in improving the performance of non-urgent repairs and the contractor apportioning its 
finite resources to meet the Councils priorities.

Percentage on non-urgent repairs completed on time                                                                                                  Source:  DBC Housing Services/HPI7
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target            98%
                  Result        90.37%
                  2015-16
                  Target             98%
                  Result        91.91%

                    Target               98%
                    Q1 Result    80.94%            
                    Q2 Result    87.50%

The cumulative total rate for 2016-17 is 83.88% The management action plan previously mentioned is 
still in place to improve the performance in this area as discussed at Overview & Scrutiny Committee in 
April 2016. This has meant that the contractor has targeted resources at the oldest jobs first in order to 
catch up and put the performance indicator back on target. This inevitably means that the performance 
indicator takes a short term hit as the oldest jobs get completed and recorded on the system. Although 
the cumulative quarter 1 performance is just under 81%, October’s performance was in excess of 90% 
indicating that the action plan and management corrections are working and should continue to 
improve moving forward.

Average time taken to re-let local authority housing                                                                                                    Source: DBC Housing Services/HPI8                                                                            
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                   2014-15
                   Target               21
                   Result          20.60

                   2015-16
                   Target               21
                   Result          19.45

                    Target                  20
                    Q1 Result        19.94        
                    Q2 Result        20.77

The average time (in days) taken to re-let local authority housing achieved target in 2015-16 and 
slightly over target for quarter 2 of 2016-17. This is due to an unusually large number of voids occurring 
that require extensive works and that could not be re-serviced within the usual 15 working day 
timeframe.



8

OVERALL BOROUGH INDICATORS
Number of new homes completed                                                                                                                                            Source: DBC Planning/BI11

2013-14 and 2014-15 2015-16
                   2013-14
                   Result               602
                 
                 2014-15

                   Result               565

                     Result                971           
Refer to page 2 and ‘Number of new homes built’ indicator for commentary.

Number of affordable homes completed                                                                                                                         Source: DBC Housing Services/BI12
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target              100
                  Result              151

                  2015-16
                  Target                 100
                  Result              103

                 Q1 Target               30                              
                 Q1 Result               14            
                 Q2 Target               30
                 Q2 Result               51

This performance indicator is on target and is a cumulative total rate. The reported figure is working 
towards an annual target of 120. The final affordable homes number for completions in 2015-16 was 
just over the target of 100 despite the slow start. 2016-17 is starting in much the same vein and there is 
confidence that the target will be met. This was discussed at length at Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
in April 2016. The quarter 1 result was previously reported as 4 but this was an error and has now been 
adjusted to the correct figure of 14.

Number of private sector dwellings returned to occupation                                                                                        Source: DBC Housing Services/BI13
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target              100
                  Result                96

                  2015-16
                  Target              115
                  Result              100
    

                   Target                   25                           
                   Q1 Result             33 
                   Q2 Result             27

Performance is on target. The reported figure is working towards an annual target of 100.

COUNCIL PERFORMING STRONGLY
COUNCIL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Percentage of Council Tax collected                                                                                                                           Source: DBC Revenues & Benefits/PS3
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target          96.9%
                  Result          97.1%

                  2015-16
                  Target          96.8%
                  Result          97.3%

                    Jun Target     29.8%       
                    Jun Result     29.6% 
                    Sep Target    57.4%
                    Sep Result    57.2%  

Whilst the in-year collection rate still remains 0.2% down against target, in monetary terms an 
additional £1.7million has been collected this year, compared to the first 6 months of last year.

A number of new initiatives have recently been introduced and it is expected that these will have a 
positive impact towards increasing the tax base and maximising income in respect of in-year collection 
and the collection of arrears.



9

Percentage of Non Domestic Rates collected                                                                                                             Source: DBC Revenues & Benefits/PS4
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target             98%
                  Result          97.9%

                  2015-16
                  Target          98.5%
                  Result          98.8%

                    Jun Target     31.3%
                    Jun Result     30.4%
                    Sep Target    57.2%
                    Sep Result    56.7%

Forecast made in quarter 1 about collection improving as the year progresses is materialising, with the 
deficit in the collection rate having reduced from 0.9% to 0.5%. In monetary terms, an additional 
£435,000 has been collected this year, compared to the first 6 months of last year.

Average time (working days) to process a new Housing Benefit Claim                                                                Source: DBC Revenues & Benefits/RBPI1
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target                27
                  Result           26.33

                  2015-16
                  Target                25
                  Result           25.67

                    Target                  23
                    Q1 Result            26 
                    Q2 Result            31

Although the quarterly result for the second quarter of 2016-17 is 31 days, the cumulative performance 
result over the last two quarters from April to September is 28 days.

The Partnership no longer employs any agency staff/off-site processing so the cost savings detailed 
above are now being realised. Most of the vacant positions in the Partnership have now been filled and 
therefore anticipate improvements in the speed of processing once new staff have settled in. The 
implementation of Risk Based Verification has been delayed slightly and this will now come into effect 
from 1 January 2017, assuming Cabinet approves the Risk Based Verification Policy on 8 December. 
This will further contribute to an improvement in processing times as the new way of working evolves.

Average number of DBC working days lost because of short term sickness per employee                                   Source: DBC Human Resources/FPI5 
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target              4.5                                       
                  Result             2.98

                  2015-16      
                  Target               5.0
                  Result             5.02

                    Q1 Target       1.125
                    Q1 Result         1.00       
                    Q2 Target       1.125
                    Q2 Result         0.67

Short-term sickness absence for quarter 2 is considerably lower than target.  However, higher sickness 
levels tend to take place in quarter 3 and quarter 4 due to seasonal bugs.

Average number of DBC working days lost because of long term sickness per employee                                     Source: DBC Human Resources/FPI6
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target                 2
                  Result            4.14

                  2015-16
                   Target              4.0 
                   Result             3.21

                     Q1 Target          0.75       
                     Q1 Result          0.58
                     Q2 Target          0.75
                     Q2 Result          0.54

Long-term sickness continues to stay below target.



10

Percentage of supplier payments made within 30 days of receipt of invoice                                                                       Source: DBC Finance/FPI8                                                                              
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target        99.50%
                  Result        99.21%
                  2015-16
                  Target        99.50%
                  Result        99.03%

                    Target           99.50%   
                    Q1 Result     99.17%
                    Q2 Result     98.77%

Performance remained at similar levels although higher than usual numbers of late invoices in July and 
August showed a slight weakening in the levels achieved. 

Rent collected as a proportion of rent due                                                                                                                     Source: DBC Housing Services/HPI1
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target          98.1%
                  Result        97.57%
                  2015-16
                  Target          98.1%                    
                  Result        97.67%

                    Q1 Target         90%                               
                    Q1 Result    91.96%
                    Q2 Target         95%
                    Q2 Result    95.54%

This performance indicator is a cumulative total rate and is on target despite the challenging economic 
environment. Previously, 97.58% of rent was collected in 2013-14 and 97.57% of rent was collected in 
2014-15 and 97.67% was collected in 2015-16. This increase in collection rates, when compared to the 
last two years, is very positive when seen in the context of the welfare reform changes and the current 
economic climate. 

Number of visits to DBC website                                                                                                                                                       Source: ICT/ITPI24
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Result       664,701
                  2015-16
                  Result       809,383

                    Q1 Result    230,074
                    Q2 Result    233,443

Continuing growth of around 20% per annum in the number of visits to the website, boosted by visitors 
interested in the festival and public events in the park.

Percentage of customer service telephone calls answered within 20 seconds                                                            Source: Customer Services/CSP1                                                                                                                   
2014-15 and 2015-16 2016-17

                  2014-15
                  Target        71.25%
                  Result        65.36%
                  2015-16
                  Target             65%
                  Result        69.29%

                    Target               65%
                    Q1 Result       40.3% 
                    Q2 Result       57.3%

Although still below target, there has been a significant improvement from last quarter. The increased 
volume of Benefit calls since February (when we started handling Sevenoaks enquires as well as 
Dartford without any additional resource) continues to bring the overall performance down. The service 
is still low on resource with 2 experienced team members still off sick.



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE WORK PLAN

1. Summary

1.1 This report sets out the Policy Overview Committee’s Work Plan.
2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That the Work Plan be noted.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. The proposed Work Plan for the Policy Overview Committee is 
attached at Appendix A.

3.2. Andrew Scott-Clarke, the Director for Public Health, will be attending 
this meeting to provide Members with a further update on the services 
that are being delivered and future funding plans

3.3. As requested at the Committee’s meeting on 20 September 2016, a 
further visit by Fairfield Leisure Centre representatives has been 
scheduled for March 2017.

3.4. Members are invited to suggest additional items for inclusion in the 
Work Plan.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

The existence of sound policies, which enable quality services to be delivered 
to the residents of Dartford, is a corporate value of the Council.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications  None

Legal Implications  None 

Staffing Implications  None

Administrative Implications  None 

Risk Assessment  No uncertainties and/or constraints

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable.

7. Appendices

Appendix A – Policy Overview Committee Work Plan



POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE
13 DECEMBER 2016

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Alan Stoneham
(01322) 343330

Member Services/ 
Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)

N/A



APPENDIX A

POLICY OVERVIEW WORK PLAN

December 2016 March 2017 June 2017 September 2017

Kent Public Health Service Dartford and Gravesham NHS 
Trust Update Pharmacy Services Performance Monitoring

Dartford Preventative Health 
Projects - Annual Report 
2015/16 and Health 
Inequalities Action Plan

Dartford, Gravesham and 
Swanley Clinical 
Commissioning Group

Policy Overview Annual 
Report 2016 - 2017

Welfare Reform Update Fairfield Management 
Contract Performance Monitoring

Performance Monitoring Performance Monitoring




	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the minutes of the Policy Overview meeting held on 20 September 2016
	6 Regulation 9 Notice
	7 Action Points Arising from the Policy Overview Committee Meeting held on 20 September 2016
	Action Points APPENDIX A

	8 Kent Public Health Service
	9 Dartford Preventative Health Projects - Annual Report 2015/16
	Health Initiatives Annual Report APPENDIX A

	10 Update on the Benefit Cap, Universal Credit and Welfare Reforms Affecting Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction
	11 Corporate Plan - Performance Indicators
	Performance Indicators APPENDIX A

	12 Policy Overview Committee Work Plan
	Work Plan APPENDIX A




